DRAFT COPY - SUBJECT TO COMMITTEE APPROVAL

BOARD: TAZEWELL COUNTY

COMMITTEE: LAND USE

DATE/TIME: Tuesday, September 9, 2025, at 5:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Chairman K. Russell Crawford, Jay Hall, Vice Chairman Jon Hopkins, Greg
Longfellow, Eric Stahl and Joe Woodrow

ABSENT: Mark Goddard, Eric Schmidgall

STAFF PRESENT: Jaclynn Workman, Community Development Administrator, Melissa Kreiter, Chief
Deputy, County Board Member

OTHERS PRESENT: Elton Rocke and other interested parties

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Crawford called the meeting to Order at 5:05 p.m.

MINUTES: Moved by Stahl, seconded by Longfellow to approved the minutes of the July 8,

2025 Land Use meeting.

On voice vote, motion declared carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Elton Rocke appeared with comments regarding the CO2 pipeline. Mr. Rocke
stated he was disappointed that after 2 ears there was nothing in place to address
the matter. Mr. Rocke repeatedly asked the board to be proactive in the matter
and not reactive. Mr. Rocke said he was tired of listening to discussion with not
progress to follow.

CASES
LU-25-11, Case 25-38-A Proposed Amendment No. 74 to Title XV, Chapter 157, Zoning Code of Tazewell
Amendment 74 County referred for hearing by the Tazewell County Land Use Committee.

Administrator Workman stated this proposed Amendment was to clean up
language regarding personal storage/recreation buildings that was previously
overlooked.

Following discussion, moved by Hopkins, seconded by Hall to recommend
approval of LU-25-11, Case No. 25-38-A to the Tazewell County Board.

On voice vote, motion declared carried, unanimously.

LU-25-12, Case 25-39-Z The petition of Peter Smidt of CL3 Properties, LLC for a Map Amendment to the

CL3Properties Official Deer Creek Township Zoning Map of Tazewell County to change the
zoning classification of property from an A-1 Agriculture Preservation Zoning
District to an A-2 Agriculture Zoning District

Administrator Workman gave an overview of the property that consisted of nearly
40 acres with a cabin. The property owner recently sold approximately 8 acres of
crop land, leaving a non-buildable lot. Ms. Workman stated the property to the
South was zoned for A-2 Agriculture, so it was consistent with the area.



DISCUSSION
Data Centers

BESS Battery Storage

Proposed Amendment 75

Member Hopkins stated he had discussions with Member Schmidgall, who was
unable to attend, and he noted concerns this property was going to be utilized as
a wedding venue. Mr. Hopkins was advised that prior to operating any type of
business from this location would require a Special Use.

Following discussion, moved by Hopkins, seconded by Stahl to recommend
approval of LU-25-12, Case No. 25-39-Z to the Tazewell County Board.

On voice vote, motion declared carried.

Administrator Workman stated there have been numerous inquiries regarding the
location of data centers in the area. Ms. Workman said there was presently no
ordinance in place at the County. Ms. Workman added that data centers utilize a
large amount of energy as well as water to keep the computers and components
cool. Ms. Workman noted there did not appear to be adequate infrastructure in
the unincorporated areas, and more are locating within the municipalities. Ms.
Workman added she fears the State may mandate something to allow data
centers, and she was curious if this would be something the committee and board
would be supportive of. Ms. Workman stated there were no other area counties
that have an ordinance on the matter and Tazewell County has only been reached
out by one company thus far.

Chairman Crawford stated remaining silent on issues no longer works for Tazewell
County and there should be some language place of an ordinance, if at least calling
for annexation into the nearest municipality.

Member Stahl stated there was a great need to protect the groundwater. Mr.
Stahl added municipalities could still undermine the county by allowing these
facilities.

Member Hopkins questioned if water could be trucked into these facilities so as
not to put a strain on local resources. As well he had additional questions
regarding what amount of power is needed and what type of tax revenue is
generated.

This item was for discussion purposes only. No action was taken, however it was
the consensus of the committee to research more to create a draft addressing
these types of uses.

Administrator Workman stated she has been approached by various companies
inquiring whether Tazewell allows battery storage facilities which are not accessory
to wind or solar establishments. Ms. Workman said these facilities would be
located in close proximity to substations and would virtually be storage cabinets
within a compounded area. Ms. Workman added she would expect to see
legislation regarding the State wanting language in place.

Administrator Workman stated it is possible that she will be looking into creating
an Energy Ordinance which encompasses, Wind, Solar, Bess and Data Centers,
since they seem to follow similar guidelines.

This item was for discussion purposes only. No action was taken

Chairman Crawford stated he was addressed about a liability concern and chance



STAFF REPORT:

NEXT MEETING:

RECESS:

of risk if the County were to be sued when members of the County Board did not
vote on matter before the Zoning Board of Appeals

Administrator Workman passed out the current code, regulations and
responsibilities. Ms. Workman stated in 2003 the Assistant States Attorney at the
time, William Atkins proposed the change to allow ZBA final authority of all
Variance and Special Use cases. Ms. Workman said there was an appeal
process in place that a petitioner could use.

Chairman Crawford stated if the County Board voted on all cases, any member
that did not attend a public hearing would have to sign an affidavit stating they
researched the case and read transcripts or watched videos prior to voting on a
case. Mr. Crawford added that the current process has worked for the passed 22
years.

Administrator Workman stated there were currently only 2 to 3 counties that
allowed the Zoning Board of Appeals to have the final approval.

Member Hall stated this current system does not appear to be broken so he does
not see a need to fix it.

Chairman Crawford stated he appreciated the fact that ZBA Chairman Duane
Lessen allows Land Use and any County Board member to question Zoning Board
cases at the Public Hearing.

Member Woodrow notes his frustration that the ZBA does not seem to go against
what Tri-County recommends, as well as his frustration with sitting through hours
and hours of testimony and then not have a vote in the matter.

Eric Stahl stated his concern when the ZBA was addressing Findings of Fact that
the ZBA Chairman seemed to be leading the ZBA into a particular finding. Mr.
Stahl said he would like to see criteria that would determine which cases would
move beyond the ZBA level.

This item was for discussion purposes only. No action was taken
Administrator Workman presented the Committee a Staff Report detailing
revenues, expenses and other office related activity for the month and year to date.

This item was for discussion purposes only and no action was taken.

The next meeting of the Land Use Committee will be held on Tuesday, October 14
12, 2025 at 5:00 p.m.

There being no further business, the meeting recessed at 7:22 p.m.

Jaclynn Workman, Secretary
(Transcribed by Melissa Kreiter, Chief Deputy)



